
         

 

 

PRINCIPAL ONE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

DUVAL COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 17, 2023 
6:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.principalonecdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Clubhouse of IL Villagio 

9745 Touchton Road 
Jacksonville, Florida 32246 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
November 17, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 
 
  
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………….Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. August 10, 2023 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing…………………………………...Page 2 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-06 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Amended Budget…..Page 7 

2. Consider Ratification of Solitude Lake Maintenance Agreement……………………………..Page 12 

3. Consider Ratification of Greenway Landscape Maintenance Agreement……………………..Page 26 

4. Consider Ratification of Mulch Masters Agreement…………………………………………..Page 46 

5. Discussion Regarding Sidewalk Repair 

I. Administrative Matters 

J. Board Member Comments 

K. Adjourn 



Notice of Regular Board Meeting of the 
Principal One Community Development District 

 
The Board of Supervisors of the Principal One Community Development District (the 

“District”) will hold a Regular Board Meeting on November 17, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., or 
as soon thereafter as the meeting can be heard, at the Clubhouse of IL Villagio 
located at 9745 Touchton Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32246. 

The purpose of the Regular Board Meeting is for the Board to consider any business 
which may properly come before it.  A copy of the Agenda may be obtained from the 
District’s website (www.principalonecdd.org) or at the offices of the District Manager, 
2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida, 33410 during normal business 
hours.  The meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the 
provisions of Florida law for community development districts.  Meetings may be 
continued as found necessary to a time and place specified on the record. 

There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will participate by telephone; 
therefore, a speaker telephone will be present at the meeting location so that 
Supervisors may be fully informed of the discussions taking place. 

In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person 
requiring special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at this meeting 
should contact the District Manager at (561) 630-4922, and/or toll free at 1-877-737-
4922, at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the meeting. 

If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter 
considered at this Regular Board Meeting, such person will need a record of the 
proceedings and such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made at their own expense and which record includes the testimony 
and evidence on which the appeal is based. 

Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
 
Principal One Community Development District 
 
www.principalonecdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:   Jacksonville Daily Record   11/09/23 

Page 1



Page 1 of 5 
 

PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

AUGUST 10, 2023 
 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Jason Pierman called the August 10, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Principal 
One Community Development District (the “District”) to order at 6:00 p.m. in the Clubhouse of Il 
Villagio located at 9745 Touchton Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32246. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. Pierman presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published 
in the Jacksonville Daily Record on July 20, 2023, and July 27, 2023, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Mr. Pierman determined that the attendance of Chairperson Michelle Hepke, Vice Chairman Brian 
Hepke and Supervisor Victoria Shirk constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the 
meeting.  
 
Also present was District Manager Jason Pierman of Special District Services, Inc. 
 
Also present were the following District residents:   
 
Cornelia Rait, Keiya Crawford, Donald Uhlmeyer, Ian Ngyen, Kimber Lawrence, Ilona and Doug Macy, 
Suzette Maymi, Marie and Mary Rogers. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  March 1, 2023,  Regular Board Meeting 
 
Mr. Pierman presented the minutes of the March 1, 2023, Regular Board Meeting and asked if there were 
any changes/corrections.   
 
A motion was then made by Ms. Shirk, seconded by Mr. Hepke and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the March 1, 2023, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 

Page 2



Page 2 of 5 
 

There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Association’s Maintenance Agreement Amendment Request 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that he and the District’s attorney had discussions with the Association president 
trying to come to an agreement, and that the Association had requested that the attached proposal be 
presented to the Board, despite his caution that the Board would likely not accept it.  Per the 
Association’s calculations, they have requested that the CDD contribute $62,309.31 for landscaping, 
lake maintenance, irrigation, management and insurance.  Reviewing the line items, Mr. Pierman 
highlighted the following:   
 

 Landscaping – The Association requested $20,358, based upon their calculations that split out 
the percentages of ownership.  However, the current landscape maintenance company provided 
a quote to the CDD of $12,000 to maintain the CDD-owned landscaping. 

 Lake Maintenance – As this would be a contract assumption, the requested $1,961.88 was correct. 
 Irrigation – The Association requested $6,487.44, again based upon the calculation.  Given the 

discrepancy of the landscaping numbers, this amount is likely grossly inflated. 
 Management – The Association requested $27,677.88.  Residents are already paying the 

Association’s management fees, regardless of whether or not a maintenance agreement is in 
place, so this would result in residents paying for the Association’s management fee twice.  Mr. 
Pierman noted that he had expressed this concern to the Association multiple times. 

 Insurance – The Association requested $5,824.11.  The Association already has insurance in 
place that residents are funding, that, this too, would be a duplicate bill.  Additionally, the CDD 
has its own insurance already in place.  

 
Following discussion, the Board consensus was to not accept the Association’s proposal, and to accept 
their termination of the maintenance agreement.  Mrs. Hepke noted that if the Association wants the 
CDD to fund water and electric, the Association will need to install separate meters that would be 
assigned to the CDD.  Mr. Hepke noted that the Association has been collecting reserves from residents 
for the renewal and replacement of the CDD-owned improvements for years, and that those reserves 
should now be transferred to the CDD, since they were collected from residents for a specific purpose 
and the CDD is the now the maintaining entity.  Mr. Pierman explained that, should an improvement 
need to be replaced or repaired at a major expense, the CDD could obtain a loan or wait until their 
reserves were sufficient to fund the project.  Discussion ensued regarding the need for the Association 
to either transfer those funds to the CDD or return them to the residents. 
 
 A resident suggested that the CDD and Association share the maintenance responsibility.  Mr. Pierman 
agreed, but explained that he had suggested that, but was told by the Association it was either all or 
nothing.  He further noted that the CDD Board must adopt a budget tonight, and that he was told by the 
Association to present what they provided, despite his concerns over their proposal.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hepke, seconded by Mrs. Hepke and unanimously passed accepting the 
Association’s termination of the maintenance agreement, not entertaining their proposal, and to take on 
maintenance responsibility of the CDD-owned infrastructure themselves.  Mr. Pierman noted that staff 
would contact the appropriate vendors and facilitate agreements to be ratified at the next meeting. 
 

Page 3



Page 3 of 5 
 

Discussion then ensued regarding the Association’s reserve funds, culminating in a motion made by Mr. 
Hepke, seconded by Ms. Shirk and unanimously passed directing the CDD’s attorney to formally request 
that reserve funds relating to CDD-owned infrastructure be transferred to the CDD. 
 
Discussion moved on regarding how much should be budgeted for each line item.  Mr. Pierman noted 
that SDS would request a small increase in fees, due to the additional work involved in managing the 
contracts.  The Board agreed on a $3,000 increase.  Following discussion, the following line items were 
agreed upon: 
 
Landscape Maintenance: $12,000 
Lake Maintenance: $2,000 
Plants/Mulch: $10,000 
Tree Trimming: $3,000 
Reserves: $5,000 
Contingency: $5,000 
Management: $3,000 
Total increase: $40,000 
 
 2.  Accept and Receive Annual Engineer’s Report 
 
Mr. Pierman presented the report, noting that the Association had already been formally notified of the 
needed sidewalk repair. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Shirk, seconded by Mr. Hepke and unanimously passed accepting and 
receiving the Annual Engineer’s Report, as presented. 
 
 3.  Discussion Regarding Supervisor Ethics Training Requirement for 2024 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that, beginning in 2024, Board Members would be required to complete four 
hours of State ethics training each year.  More information will be provided closer to the end of the year.   
 
 4.  Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Resetting Public Hearing Date to Adopt Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 Final Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2023-02 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE PRINCIPAL 
ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AMENDING RESOLUTION 
NO. 2023-01; AMENDING THE DATE AND TIME FOR THE PUBLIC 
HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 FINAL BUDGET 
AND ASSESSMENTS AND AUTHORIZING THE SECRETARY AND 
DISTRICT MANAGER TO TAKE CERTAIN ACTIONS TO ACCOMPLISH 
THE INTENT OF THIS RESOLUTION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Ms. Shirk, seconded by Mr. Hepke and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
No. 2023-02, resetting the Public Hearing date to August 8, 2023, as presented. 

Page 4



Page 4 of 5 
 

 5.  Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule 
 
Resolution No. 2023-03 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE PRINCIPAL 
ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 AND 
SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Hepke, seconded by Ms. Shirk and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
No. 2023-03, as presented. 
 
 6.  Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 – Adopting a Records Retention Policy 
 
Resolution No. 2023-04 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE PRINCIPAL 
ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR THE 
APPOINTMENT OF A RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; 
PROVIDING THE DUTIES OF THE RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON 
OFFICER; ADOPTING A RECORDS RETENTION POLICY; DETERMINING 
THE ELECTRONIC RECORD TO BE THE OFFICIAL RECORD; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

A motion was made by Ms. Shirk, seconded by Ms. Hepke and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
No. 2023-04, as presented. 
 
Mr. Pierman then recessed the Regular Board Meeting and opened the Public Hearing. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Mr. Pierman presented proof of publication that notice of the Public Hearing had been published in the 
Jacksonville Daily Record on July 20, 2023, and July 27, 2023, as legally required.  
 
 2.  Receive Public Comment on Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the possibility that Association fees would not be reduced by the correlating 
amount by which CDD assessments were being increased.  Residents expressed frustration that the 
Association Board was not forthcoming in their meetings, and thanked the CDD Board for their 
willingness to have a dialogue. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2023-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget 
 

Page 5



Page 5 of 5 
 

Resolution No. 2023-05 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 BUDGET.  

 
Following discussion, the Board agreed to revise the budget based on their previous conversation, with 
a total budget increase of $40,000.  Mr. Pierman noted that the changes would result in roughly a $100 
increase in assessments.   
 
A motion was made by Ms. Shirk, seconded by Mr. Hepke and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
No. 2023-05, as amended. 
 
Mr. Pierman then closed the Public Hearing and reconvened the Regular Board Meeting. 
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
Mr. Pierman reminded the Board to submit their Form 1’s and noted that the next meeting would be held 
in November.   
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further Board Member comments. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Ms. Shirk, seconded 
by Mr. Hepke and unanimously passed adjourning the meeting at 7:19 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 6



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL 
YEAR 2022/2023 BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT 
TO CHAPTER 189, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Principal One Community Development 
District (“District”) is empowered to provide a funding source and to impose special assessments 
upon the properties within the District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared for consideration and approval an Amended 
Budget. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 
  

                  Section 1. The Amended Budget for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and adopted. 

 
 Section 2. The Secretary/Assistant Secretary of the District is authorized to execute 

any and all necessary transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as 
necessary, to comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 17th day of November, 2023. 
 

 

ATTEST: PRINCIPAL ONE 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 
 

Page 7



   Principal One
 Community Development District

     Amended Final Budget For
     Fiscal Year 2022/2023

      October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



[23-1013] Page 2 of 14 

E. CONTRACTOR shall be obligated throughout the Contract Time to provide 
insurance coverage in accordance with the attached Exhibit “B” (Minimum Insurance 
Coverage). Provision of the minimum insurance coverage provided herein is a material 
element of the contract and failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence 
of renewal may be treated by Owner as a material breach of contract. 
 

G. CONTRACTOR will upon request from DISTRICT confirm that any and all sub-
contractors are currently and remain in compliance throughout the term of this Agreement 
with any applicable requirement of the Contract Documents.  
 
Article 3: Contract Term. 
 
The initial term of this Agreement shall run for a period of one (1) year commencing on 
October 1, 2023(the “Contract Time”). Thereafter, this Agreement shall automatically 
renew annually on its anniversary unless sooner terminated as provided in Article 11, 
below. The total contract period shall not exceed three (3) years.  
 
Article 4:   Contract Price. 
 
DISTRICT shall pay CONTRACTOR the total sum of TWO THOUSAND FORTY AND 
NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,040.00) per year for the Work, payable in equal monthly 
installments of ONE HUNDRED SEVENTY AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($170.00).  
 
Article 5:  Payment Procedures.  
 
 A. Unless otherwise specified herein, for the purpose of compliance with Section 
218.735(1), F.S. (Local Government Prompt Payment Act), Owner’s Agent to whom 
Contractor may submit Applications for Payment or invoices shall be as follows: 

 
Jason Pierman, District Administrator 

Special District Services 
2501A Burns Road 

Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 
Phone:  561-630-4922 Ext 227 

jpierman@sds.org 
 
 B. The District will generally pay invoices within 30 days of receipt provided that the 
invoices are submitted on or before the 1st of each month. If said invoice(s) is not timely 
submitted, then the invoice(s) will be processed by the District during the next monthly 
pay period. 

 
A. In the event of a disputed or contested invoice, only that portion contested may be 

withheld from payment, and the undisputed portion will be paid. 
 
B. In the event of non-renewal or termination, CONTRACTOR shall be paid for all 

accrued but unpaid services and Reimbursable Expenses through the end of the current 

Page 13



[23-1013] Page 3 of 14 

term of the Agreement or the date of termination, as applicable. CONTRACTOR will be 
entitled to invoice DISTRICT and be paid for all services performed or furnished and all 
reimbursable expenses incurred through the end of the current term of the Agreement or 
date of termination, as applicable. 
 
Article 6: Contractor’s Representations & Warranties. 
 
In order to induce DISTRICT to enter into this Agreement, CONTRACTOR makes the 
following representations and warranties: 
 

 A. CONTRACTOR has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents 
and the other related data identified in the RFP and other Bidding Documents. 
 

 B. CONTRACTOR is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state, and local 
Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

 
 C. CONTRACTOR has given DISTRICT written notice of all conflicts, errors, 

ambiguities, or discrepancies that CONTRACTOR has discovered in the Contract 
Documents, and the written resolution thereof by DISTRICT is acceptable to 
CONTRACTOR. 
 

C. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey 
understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work. 
 

D. CONTRACTOR affirms and warrants to DISTRICT that it and its Sub-Contractors 
(if any) hold and will maintain current and appropriate certification(s) and/or license(s) for 
the purpose of performing the Work. 
 

E. [DELETED] 
 

Article 7:  Public Entity Crimes. 
 
As provided in Sections 287.132 & 287.133, Florida Statutes, by entering into this 
Agreement or performing any Work in furtherance hereof, the CONTRACTOR certifies 
that it, its affiliates, suppliers, subcontractor and consultants who will perform  any Work 
hereunder, have not been placed on the convicted vendor list maintained by the State of 
Florida Department of Management Services within the thirty–six (36) months 
immediately preceding the date hereof. This notice is required by section 287.133(3)(a), 
Florida Statutes. 
 
Article 8. Hold Harmless and Indemnification:  The parties hereto agree, to the extent 
permitted by law, to:  
 
 A. Indemnify, save and hold harmless the other, their officers, employees, 
servants or agents, and to defend said persons from any such claims, liabilities, causes 
of action and judgments of any type whatsoever arising out of or relating to the negligent 

Page 14



[23-1013] Page 4 of 14 

or wrongful acts or omissions of each relating to their obligations under this Agreement; 
and  

 
B. Be responsible for their own costs, attorney's fees and expenses in connection 

with such claims, liabilities or suits except as may be incurred due to the negligent 
performance of this Agreement by the negligent party.  The forgoing indemnity shall 
survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  A party shall not be deemed to 
assume any liability for the negligent or wrongful acts, or omissions of the other party (or 
parties).  

 
C. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as a waiver by the parties of the 

liability limits established in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 
 
Article 9:  Notices. 
 
Any and all notices required to be given by this Agreement or the Contract Documents 
shall be in writing and hand delivered or delivered via certified or registered U.S. Mail to 
the following representatives of the DISTRICT and the CONTRACTOR: 
 
DISTRICT representative and address: 
 

Jason Pierman, District Administrator 
Special District Services  
2501A Burns, District Administrator Road  
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 
P:  561-630-4922 
F:  561-630-4923   
 
With Copy To: 
 

 Frank S. Palen, Esq., District Legal Counsel 
 Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP 

1555 Palm Beach Lakes Boulevard, Suite 1200 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
 

CONTRACTOR representative and address: 
 
David Cottrell, Business Development Consultant 
9774 Florida Mining Boulevard West, Suite 801 

 Jacksonville, Florida 32257 
 
Article 10:   Governing Law. 
 
The laws of the State of Florida shall govern this Agreement and Contract Documents, 
and venue of any action shall be in a court of competent jurisdiction in Duval County, 
Florida. 

Page 15



[23-1013] Page 5 of 14 

 
Article 11:  Termination. 
 
 This Agreement may be terminated by either party, with or without cause, following 
thirty (30) calendar days advance written notice by one party to the other. 
 
Article 12:  Rights and Remedies. 
 
The duties and obligations imposed by the Agreement and Contract Documents, and the 
rights and remedies available there under shall be in addition to and not a limitation of 
any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law.  If 
either party seeks to resolve a dispute under this Agreement and the Contract Documents 
in any court of law, the prevailing party in such dispute shall have its expenses and costs, 
including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees and the cost of appellate 
proceedings, paid by the other, non-prevailing party. 
 
Article 13:  Independent Contractor Relationship. 
 
The CONTRACTOR is, and shall be, in performance of all work, services and activities 
under this Agreement and Contract Documents, an Independent Contractor, and not an 
employee, agent or servant of the DISTRICT. All persons engaged in any of the Work, 
services or activities performed pursuant to this Agreement and the Contract Documents 
shall at all times and in all places be subject to the CONTRACTOR’S sole direction, 
supervision and control. The CONTRACTOR shall exercise control over the means and 
manner in which it and its employees perform the Work, and in all respects the 
CONTRACTOR’S relationship and the relationship of its employees to the DISTRICT 
shall be that of an Independent CONTRACTOR and not as employees or agents of the 
DISTRICT. 
 
Article 14:  Miscellaneous. 
 

A. Any term used in this Agreement will have the same meaning as indicated in the 
Contract Documents. 
 

B. This Agreement represents the entire understanding and agreement between the 
Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes all previous 
agreements or representations, either verbal or written, heretofore in effect between 
Developer and the District made with respect to the matters herein contained. 
 

C. No additions, alterations or variations of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid, 
nor can provisions of the Agreement be waived by either Party, unless such additions, 
alteration, variations or waivers are expressed in writing and duly signed.   
 

D.  No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract 
will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to 
be bound; and, specifically but without limitation, moneys that may become due and 

Page 16



[23-1013] Page 6 of 14 

moneys that are due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that 
the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the 
contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge 
the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents. 
 

E. The covenants and agreements contained in this Contract shall apply to, inure to 
the benefit of, and be binding upon the parties hereto and upon their respective legal 
representatives, heirs, executors, administrators, assigns and successors in interest. 

F. In the event that any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or provision hereof is 
held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the remaining 
portions of this Agreement. 

G. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

H. In the event of an express conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the 
terms of any other Contract Document or the Supplemental Contract Provisions attached 
as Exhibit “A”, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail. 

I. Public Records. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the applicable provisions of 
§119.0701, Florida Statutes (Public Records), as follows: 

 
(1) IF PROVIDER HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 

APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
PROVIDER’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT: Jason Pierman, 
District Administrator, Special District Services, 2501A Burns, 
District Administrator Road, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410, 
Telephone 561-630-4922 

 
(2)  Specifically, Provider shall: 

 
A.  Keep and maintain public records required by the District to provide 

Authorized Recreation Services. 
 

B. Upon request from District’s custodian of public records, provide District 
with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or 
copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost 
provided in chapter 119, F.S. or as otherwise provided by law or District 
Policy. 

 
C. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 

public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as 

Page 17



[23-1013] Page 7 of 14 

authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following 
completion of the contract if Provider does not transfer the records to 
District. 

 
D. Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the District all public 

records in Provider’s possession or keep and maintain public records 
required by the District to provide Authorized Recreation Services. If 
Provider transfers all public records to District upon completion of the 
contract, Provider shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt 
or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If 
Provider keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 
contract, Provider shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public 
records. All records stored electronically must be provided to District upon 
request from District’s custodian of public records, in a format that is 
compatible with District’s information technology systems. 

 
J. Inspector General. CONTRACTOR understands and shall comply and cooperate 

with the requirements of the Inspectors General of the State of Florida in any investigation, 
audit, inspection, review, or hearing conducted pursuant to §20.055, F.S. or otherwise by 
law. 

 
K. E-VERIFY: The CONTRACTOR warrants compliance with all federal immigration 

laws and regulations that relate to its employees and subcontractors. The CONTRACTOR 
agrees and acknowledges that commencing January 1, 2021, the DISTRICT, as a public 
employer, shall be subject to the E-verify requirements set forth in Section 448.095, 
Florida Statutes, and that the provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes shall 
thereupon apply to contracts entered into or renewed on or after said commencement 
date. In compliance therewith, and following the January 1, 2021 commencement date, if 
the DISTRICT has a good faith belief: (a) that the CONTRACTOR has knowingly hired, 
recruited or referred an alien who is not authorized to work under this contract by the 
immigration laws or the Attorney General of the United States and is in violation of Section 
448.09(1), Florida Statutes, the DISTRICT shall terminate this contract, or (b) that a 
subcontractor performing work for the Contractor under this contract has knowingly hired, 
recruited or referred an alien who is not duly authorized by the immigration laws or the 
Attorney General of the United States to work under this contract, the OWNER shall 
promptly notify the CONTRACTOR and order the CONTRACTOR to immediately 
terminate its agreement with said subcontractor as to this contract. The CONTRACTOR 
shall be liable for any additional costs incurred by the DISTRICT as a result of the 
termination of the contract based on CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with E-verify 
requirements referenced herein. 

 
Article 15:  Effective Date.   

This Agreement shall become effective on October 1, 2023, following execution by both 
parties.  

Page 18



Page 19



[23-1013] Page 9 of 14 

       
 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

Page 20



[23-1013] Page 10 of 14 

 
 

Page 21



[23-1013] Page 11 of 14 

 

Page 22



[23-1013] Page 12 of 14 

 

Page 23



[23-1013] Page 13 of 14 

EXHIBIT “B” 
MINIMUM INSURANCE COVERAGE* 

 
Below is shown the MINIMUM acceptable insurance to be carried under this Agreement: 
 
    I. Commercial General Liability: 
 
 (A) Bodily Injury Limit: 
  
 $1,000,000   Each Occurrence 
 $1,000,000   Annual Aggregate 
 
 Property Damage Limit: 
 
 $1,000,000   Each Occurrence 
 $1,000,000   Annual Aggregate 
 

(B) or a Combined Single Limit of Bodily Injury and Property Damage : 
 

 $1,000,000   Each Occurrence 
 $1,000,000   Annual Aggregate 
 

(C) The Commercial General Liability shall include Contractual Liability. 
 

   II. Automobile Liability (Any Auto) $   500,000  
  
III. Workers Compensation   
 

 Statutory Limits  and $   300,000 Each Accident 
 $1,000,000 Disease-Policy Limit 

Employers Liability   $   300,000 Disease-Each Employee 
 
  IV. Umbrella Excess Liability Insurance: 
 
 (A) $3,000,000   Each Occurrence 
  $3,000,000   Annual Aggregate 
  
 (B) The aforementioned umbrella coverage shall be no more restrictive than 

coverage required for the underlying policies. 
 
   V. Notice of Cancellation: 
 
 The insurance afforded above may not be terminated or reduced unless thirty (30) 

days prior written notice of such termination or reduction is mailed to District 
(unless terminated for non-payment in which event ten (10) days notice is 
required). 

Page 24



[23-1013] Page 14 of 14 

 
   VI. Professional Liability Insurance 
 
 (A) $1,000,000 
 (B) $500,000 maximum deductible per incident 
 
   VII. Insurance Certificate: 
 
 PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ITS OFFICERS, 

EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS, shall be listed as an additional insured for the above 
Commercial, Automobile and Umbrella Liability insurance coverage and a 
certificate of insurance reflecting same shall be delivered to PRINCIPAL ONE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, which certificate of insurance shall be 
maintained on a continuing basis throughout the Term of this Agreement. 

 
VIII. Policy Endorsement: 
 
 PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT with a CG 2026 

Additional Insured–Designated Person or Organization Endorsement to 
Engineer's Commercial General Liability insurance Policy. The Additional insured 
Endorsement shall read "PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT, an Independent Special District of the State of Florida, its Officers, 
Employees and Agents". Contractor shall provide the Additional Insured 
Endorsements coverage on a primary basis. A copy of the Policy Endorsement(s) 
shall be provided to District. 

 
IX. Acceptable Insurers 
 
 At a minimum, Insurers shall have an A. M. Best Rating of A:VII. 
 
X. Special Risks or Circumstances for Supplemental Services 
 
 District reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, for 

Supplemental Services or Work, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, 
insurer, coverage or other special circumstances involved in a project. If 
modifications in insurance coverage are required, such modifications will be 
defined in a written Supplemental Work Authorization 

. 
  

Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57


	Principle One Community Development District - November 8, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	August 10, 2023 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-06 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Amended Budget
	Consider Ratification of Solitude Lake Maintenance Agreement
	Consider Ratification of Greenway Landscape Maintenance Agreement
	Consider Ratification of Mulch Masters Agreement




